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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Société a responsabilité limitée
20, Boulevard Royal
L-2449 Luxembourg
Share Capital: EUR 14,000
R.C.S. Luxembourg: B 181.773
(hereinafter the “Company”)

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019

Dear shareholders of the Company,

In accordance with the provisions of the Luxembourg law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies
as amended, the Board of Managers of the Company (“Board of Managers") hereby submits to you the
consolidated management report for the financial year 2019.

1. Elenia group company structure - overview

The Company holds all the shares in Elenia Oy, a Finnish limited liability company and having its
registered office at Patamé&enkatu 7, Tampere. The Company together with Elenia Oy and its subsidiaries
are hereafter referred to as the “Group”. The Company is part of a group of companies which invests in
Elenia Sub-group (the "Sub-Group”). The Sub-Group consists of Elenia Oy, Elenia Palvelut Oy and
Elenia Finance Oyj.

Elenia has two business lines:

e Elenia Networks owns and operates an electricity distribution network, which is the main
business of the Group;
e Elenia Services operates a customer service business, procurement, construction and project

management business, and builds and operates passive fiber-to-the-home network.

These business functions are supported by Elenia Finance Oyj ("Elenia Finance”), which provides
treasury related services to the Group companies. Elenia Holdings S.a r.l. is the parent company of the
Group. In 2019 the parent of the Sub-Group, Elenia Oy, owned a district heating business (Elenia Lampé
Oy), which was divested to a consortium of infrastructure investors in July 2019.



As at 31 December 2019, the subscribed share capital of the Company is divided into 1,400,000 shares
fully paid up with a nominal value of EUR 0.01 each. Lakeside Network Investments Holding B.V. holds
1,250,000 shares in the Company corresponding to 89% of the share capital of the Company. Elenia
Finance SPPS S.a r.l. holds 150,000 shares in the Company corresponding to 11% of the share capital
of the Company.

During the financial year 2019 there was no change in the shareholder structure.

2. Financial Performance

The Group’s revenue in 2019 was EUR 295.6 million (EUR 272.7 million in 2018, restated'). The 8.4%
revenue growth was mainly driven by the increases in electricity distribution tariffs. Elenia Networks
business line increased its tariffs by on average 9.9% in August 2018 and by 9% in September 2019 to
finance the continued investments in underground cabling. Due to taxes, the actual increases on

customer invoices were approximately 6% on both times.

In 2019, the Group’s EBITDA totalled EUR 182.6 million (EUR 169.5 million in 2018, restated). The
7.8% growth in EBITDA was mainly driven by higher revenues. EBITDA excluding non-recurring and
exceptional items was EUR 187.9 million in 2019 (170.4 million in 2018, restated). The non-recurring
and exceptional items in 2019 mainly consists of costs related to the snow loads during January and
February of 2019. The snow load situation lasted for six weeks making it the longest lasting snow loads

in the history of Elenia Networks. It accounts for EUR 4.8 million of the EUR 5.3 million non-recurring
and exceptional items.

Elenia Group (EUR million) 2019 2018 (restated)?

Revenue 2956 2727
EBITDA 182.6 169.5
EBITDA excluding non-recurring and exceptional items 187.9 170.4
EBITDA margin (excl. non-rec. and exceptional items) 63.6% 62.5%

! Elenia Oy’s divestment of its district heating business was completed on 22 July 2019. The district heating
business accounted for approximately 22% of group revenues and 13% of group EBITDA (according to 2018 full
year actuals). The revenue and EBITDA in 2018 including the district heating business were EUR 349.7 million
and EUR 194.4 million, respectively. EBITDA excluding exceptional and non-recu rring items was EUR 196.0
million in 2018.
2 The figures in the table include the revenue and EBITDA without the discontinued operations. The district
heating business divestment was completed on 22 July 2019 and 2018 figures are restated for comparability.
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3. Risk management

The Group undertakes comprehensive risk management at its operation in Finland covering risk
identification, assessment, reporting and measures to manage risks in cooperation with business units

and other Group functions.

Currency risk

The Group's subsidiaries operate in Finland and uses the euro as its primary operating currency. The
Group's currency risk is based on purchases of raw materials and services denominated in currencies
other than the euro. The purchases of raw materials and services denominated in currencies other than
the euro have a negative effect on the Group's result and cash flow in the event that the currencies in
question appreciate against the euro. As the Group's purchasing operations are currently primarily
focused on Finland, the currency risk related to purchasing is limited.

The Group has guidelines for the management of currency risk as part of the purchasing policy for
network operations approved by the Executive Board of the Sub-Group. According to the guidelines,
currency risks that have an impact on profit or loss are hedged either operationally through contractual

currency rate clauses or, if that is not possible, through forward contracts concluded by the Treasury
unit.

Operating profit includes EUR 11.2 thousand exchange rate differences (2018: EUR 7.6 thousand).
Finance costs include EUR (2.3) thousand exchange rate differences (2018: EUR (6.6) thousand). At

the end of 2018, there were no receivables or liabilities in other currencies than in euro.

Credit risk

Due to electricity distribution companies having regional monopolies based on electricity distribution
system licenses, customers do not have the option of choosing which distribution company's network
they connect to. As a result, the local distribution company always provides electricity distribution
services, with the exception of electricity generation customers who, pursuant to the Finnish Electricity

Market Act, have the right to choose which electricity distribution company's network to connect to.



Invoicing for electricity distribution services is based on measured consumption and the distribution
tariffs specified in the public electricity network price list. The invoicing period may be one month or two
months. In the event that a customer fails to pay the invoice, the electricity distribution company has
the right to discontinue the supply of electricity after sending the required collection letters. Also the
wide fragmentation of the customer base reduces the credit risk.In district heating business operations,
the credit risk is based on the difference between the invoicing period and the heating supplied. Credit
risk is mitigated by monthly invoicing.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of the Group not having adequate liquid assets to finance its operations,
pay interest and repay its loans. The management of liquidity risk is divided into short-term and long-
term liquidity management. Short-term liquidity risk is managed by cash flow planning that takes into
account the expected trade receivables, trade payables and other known expenses for a period of two

weeks. The adequacy of long-term liquidity is assessed by 12-month forecasts conducted monthly.

Refinancing risk

Elenia Finance Oyj issues bonds and notes. Bonds are issued under the EUR 3 billion EMTN
programme and listed at the London Stock Exchange. Notes are not listed and issued through private

placements targeted mostly to the US investors through private placements.

At the end of 2019, the Group has borrowed from international banks EUR 370 million (2018: EUR 40.0
million using the Working Capital Facility and EUR 18.0 million using the Capex Facility). In December
2018, Elenia Oy agreed on EUR 150.0 million credit with European Investment bank. The loan can be
drawn within 18 months from the agreement and the maturity of the loans will be 7-10 years from the
drawdown. As at 31 December 2019 an amount of EUR 50 million is in use (2018; Nil). The Group's
long-term loans totaling EUR 252.2 million were reimbursed during 2019

On February 6, 2020, the Group issued a EUR 500 million bond to institutional investors with a
maturity of seven years and a fixed coupon of 0.375%.



Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly through its interest-bearing net debt. The objective of

the Group's interest rate risk management is to limit volatility of interest expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The Group's interest rate risk management is handled by the Group Treasury.
The interest rate risk is managed by entering into interest rate swaps and by drawdown of loans with
fixed interest. At the balance sheet date 76% (2018: 95%) of the loans were fixed rate loans.

A parallel shift of +/- 1.0 percentage points in the interest rate curve at the balance sheet date would
have EUR +/- 4.0 million (2018: +/-0.5 million) effect on the interests relating to floating rate loans.

The Legal Affairs and Risk Management unit is responsible for coordinating risk management.
Comprehensive risk management is undertaken covering risk identification, assessment, reporting and
measures to manage risks in cooperation with business units and Group functions. In 2019, the Group
conducted an enterprise risk management (ERM) based maturity study and is currently developing its
risk management according to leading frameworks and practices. The Finance Unit is responsible for
Group’s insurance programme and for handling insurance claims in cooperation with an insurance

broker.

Cyber Security

The Group has continued to reinforce cyber security awareness as a crucial part of the business
internally and in cooperation with the partners. In 2019 the Group trained its staff and partners with
several Cyber Security exercises within the company and in cooperation with other organisations
nationally. The main project of the year was the ISO 27001 Information Security Management System
certification project. The project consisted of improvements in processes, documentation, technology

and awareness. The certification will be achieved in 2020.

4. Business Review — Electricity Distribution

Elenia Networks is Finland's second largest electricity distribution system operator (“DSO”) with a 12%
market share in terms of number of customers. Elenia Networks is a regional monopoly serving all
customers in the regions in which it operates as defined by the licence granted by the Energy Authority
("EA"). The relevant licence holder has the exclusive right to build and operate an electricity distribution
network in its area of responsibility.



With an electricity network of approximately 74,000 km, Elenia Networks supplies electricity to
approximately 430,000 end-users®. In addition to residential customers, key customer segments include
industrial, service, construction and public sectors. The company has operations in more than 100 cities
and municipalities spanning a geographical area of nearly 600 km in length across central Finland, from
Southern Hame to Northern Ostrobothnia.

In 2019, Elenia Networks distributed 6,362 GWh (6,440 GWh in 2018) of electricity, which is 1.2% less
than in 2018, mainly driven by warmer weather during the winter months. Elenia Networks’ total revenue
(including intra-group items and other operating income) was EUR 294.3 million (273.2 million in 2018).
The 7.7% increase in total revenue was attributable to an increase in electricity distribution tariffs. Elenia
Networks’ EBITDA in 2019 was EUR 183.4 million (EUR 169.0 million in 2018). The growth in EBITDA

was primarily driven by the increase in revenue described above.

The weather conditions in 2019 were more challenging than in 2018. The year started with Aapeli storm
in early January. Aapeli caused outages in certain areas of Sub-Group's distribution network served by
overhead lines. The maximum number of customers simultaneously without electricity was less than
39,000. All connections were restored within 52 hours. The costs related to the storm were
approximately EUR3.5 million.

After the Aapeli storm, January was cold with substantial snowfall causing heavy snow loads in trees
and subsequent outages in the distribution network. The snow load situation was challenging and
continued until mid-February, making it the longest period of continuous outages during Sub-Group’s
recorded history. The exceptional and non-recurring costs related to the snow loads were approximately
EUR4.8 million.

In May 2019, the Helka storm caused outages in certain areas of Sub-Group’s distribution network
served by overhead lines. The maximum number of customers simultaneously without electricity was
less than 15,000. All connections were restored in less than 24 hours.

In December 2019, Aapo snowstorm caused an acute snow load situation in Pirkanmaa region when
heavy and wet snow was accompanied by below zero temperature. The maximum number of customers

without electricity was almost 40,000 but all connections were restored in less than 48 hours.

*In 2019 Elenia Networks changed the way it reports number of customers. The official number reported to
the EA of 434,263 includes the households that have solar powers two times: first as users of electricity
(430,318) and then producers of electricity (3,816). The balance between the numbers are the large-scale
electricity generators (129 at end of 2019). The number comparable with 430,318 (31.12.2019) is 427,361. The
number of customers rose by 0.7% during 2019,
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SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration Index), a measure of the duration of outages, was 254
minutes during the year (95 minutes in 2018). SAIDI excluding the impact of Class 3 and 4 storms, was
87 minutes (95 minutes in 2018). The SAIDI figures show the positive underlying trend in outages driven
by the increased underground cabling, but also the need to continue to improve security of supply in
the coming years by replacing old overhead lines at the end of their useful life with new underground
cables. The Sub-Groups' estimates that the number of customers without electricity during Storm Aapeli
would have been three times as high without the considerable investments into the network during the

previous decade. Elenia Networks' investments since 2009 amount to over one billion euros.

During 2019, Elenia Networks continued to invest in the electricity network in accordance with its
development plan. Elenia Networks' investment plan has been designed to improve the security of
supply via underground cabling. Elenia Networks has built only weatherproof underground cables since
2009. At the end of 2019, 49.6% of the network was underground, up from 45.1% at the end of 2018.

At the end of 2018, the Group launched a procurement process for next generation smart meters. The
procurement tender was carried out in the form of innovation partnership during the first half of 2019
and Aidon, IskraEmeco and Telia were selected for the innovation phase, which continues until the
second half of 2020, when the vendor is selected. During the second half of 2019, the preparations
were made for the tender of the installation of the smart meters. The tender process will be carried out
during the first half of 2020. The target is that the first test batch of new smart meters will be installed
during the fourth quarter of 2020 with the large-scale roll-out targeted to commence during the second
quarter of 2021. The roll-out will take place between 2021 and 2023.

In 2019, the Sub-Group also continued to invest in other technological solutions such as robotics,
business intelligence and data analytics, and has set a goal to develop its cybersecurity management
to reach the 1ISO 27001 standard during the first half of 2020.

The Electricity Market Act (‘EMA”") states that 100% of customers must be within the scope of the quality
requirements by the end of 20284, Elenia Networks will achieve the requirement by increasing the
cabling rate to 75% by the end of 2028. At the end of 2019, approximately 68% of Elenia Networks'
customers were within the scope of the EMA quality requirements, up from 62% at end of 2018. While
the main focus in relation to the development of the security of supply remains on underground cabling,
Elenia Networks also seeks to improve the security of supply by other means. For example, in recent

years Elenia Networks has developed an efficient model for tree clearance outside line corridors.

4 EMA stipulates that by end of 2028 all customers (100%) need to be connected to a secure network where

outages cannot last more than 6 hours in zoned areas and not more than 36 hours in other areas. By end of

20189 50% customers must be connected to a secure network, 75% by end of 2023 and 100% by end of 2028.
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Elenia Networks invested EUR 152.7 million in developing its electricity network in 2018, of which EUR
151.0 million was Regulatory Asset Value ("RAV") accretive. Investment in the electricity network will
continue in 2020. Elenia Networks invests annually over EUR 160 million primarily to construct over
3,500 km of underground cables.

Elenia Networks continued to further develop its asset management system according to the PAS 55-
1:2008 standard and the international standard ISO 55001:2014. The requirements of both PAS 55 and
ISO 55001 guide the construction, operation, maintenance and repair of Group'’s electricity network.
This ensures that Elenia Networks continues to improve the way it operates, maintains and upgrades
its electricity network in order to respond to its customers’ needs. The certificates also require that the
suppliers and service providers commit to responsible, high-quality operations. Elenia Networks' asset

management system was recertificated in November 2019.

The EA supervises the operations of Finnish DSOs. The regulation is based on four-year regulatory
periods. The current year marks the first of the fifth regulatory period (2020-2023). The reasonable rate
of return declined from 6.62% in 2018 to 6.20% in 2019 due to a change in the risk-free rate. The
regulatory guidelines provide stability for the industry and enable the continuation of Elenia Networks’

security of supply driven investment programme as planned.

The EA has published selected preliminary key figures, including Regulatory Asset Base (“RAB”) and
regulatory deficit/surplus for all Finnish DSOs for 2018. Elenia Networks' RAB was EUR 1633.0 million
and regulatory deficit was EUR 36.9 million. Elenia Networks' cumulative regulatory deficit - after taking
into account the surplus carried over from the third period — was EUR 51.6 million at the end of 2018.
The publication of these figures was preceded by discussions between Elenia Networks and the EA
and, whilst the Sub-Group is confident that these numbers will not change, they should be considered
preliminary until the final regulatory decision has been given by the EA. The EA will confirm the final
regulatory deficit as well as the final RAB figures after the end of the entire fourth period, either during
the latter part of 2020 or in early 2021. Therefore, the Sub-Group is not publishing its own calculation
of 2019 regulatory deficit, the cumulative regulatory deficit or RAB.



5. Business Review — Service Business

Elenia Services provides customer service and related services to the Sub-Group and other Finnish
utilities, including invoicing, collection, connection sales, outage management and electricity market
information exchange services. In the beginning of 2019, Elenia Oy transferred its procurement and
construction unit as well as marketing and sales unit to Elenia Palvelut Oy. This intra-group transfer
means that Elenia Palvelut Oy is well positioned to offer procurement and project management services
also to external customers and strengthen its offering in customer services concept. Additionally, this
change in organisation allowed Elenia Palvelut Oy to pilot the entry into the fiber business (offering
passive fiber-to-the-home) in two areas in Pirkanmaa and Hame.

In May 2019, Elenia Services entered into a customer service agreement with Suur-Savon Sahké Oy
and Eteld-Savon Energia Oy. Elenia Services has, in addition to Suur-Savon Sihké and Etela-Savon
Energia, five external third party customers: Lahti Energia Oy, Alva Oy (formely known as Jyviskylan
Energia Oy), Tampereen Sahkolaitos Oy, Auris Kaasunjakelu Oy and Loimua Qy (formerly known as
Elenia Lampé Oy).

In May 2019, Elenia Services closed down the Jyvéskyld office to streamline the operations as the
services will be provided from the headquarter in Tampere. The cooperation with Alva will continue in
accordance with the service agreement. Also in May 2019, Elenia Services opened a new office in the
city of Mikkeli in connection with the new service agreement with Suur-Savon S&hké and Etela-Savon

Energia.

In 2019 Elenia Services' total revenue (including intra-group items) was EUR 24.5 million (EUR 10.5
million in 2018). Of this, the total revenue from external customers amounted to EUR 4.0 million in 2019
(EUR 2.4 million in 2018). Elenia Services' EBITDA was EUR 2.4 million in 2019 (EUR 1.8 million in
2018).

Excellent customer service is a key strategic goal for the Sub-Group. Customer service and process
quality are also critical success factors for Elenia Services to grow in the customer service business in
the Finnish energy sector.



6. Financing

In 2019 Elenia Finance Oyj did not issue any bonds under its EMTN programme or made any private
placements (in 2018 EUR 161 million bond was issued under the EMTN programme). However, partially
with the proceeds from the sale of the district heating business, Elenia Finance Oyj made a tender offer
for its EUR 500 million benchmark bond maturing in December 2020. The tender was very successful
with almost EUR 411 million being bought back, representing 82% of the entire issue. Consequently,
there is approximately EUR 88 million of the bond left to mature in December 2020. The tender was
completed in early December 2019.

The weighted average maturity of the Group's debt was prolonged to 11.4 years (9.6 years at the end
of 2018), excluding other long-term loans and bank facilities. The weighted average interest rate
(excluding other long-term loans) was 2.3% in 2019 (2.9% at the end of 2018). Partially with the
proceeds from the sale of the district heating business, Elenia Oy repaid all the remaining other long-

term loans.

The Group's credit facilities consist of a EUR 350 million Capex Facility, a EUR 60 million Working
Capital Facility and a EUR 60 million Liquidity Facility. The Capex Facility and Working Capital Facility
were extended by one year in June utilising the second extension option, and consequently the facilities
have a maturity date in June 2024. The Liquidity Facility with a 7-year tenor was renewed during 2019
as well.

The Group continues to have a strong liquidity position. As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash
equivalents amounted to EUR 29.3 million (EUR 17.4 million in 2018), while EUR 320 million of the
credit facilities was drawn at the year-end (EUR 58 million was drawn at the end of 2018). At end of
December 2019, EUR 50 million was drawn from the EUR 150 million facility from the European
Investment Bank (“EIB") signed in December 2018.

The bonds issued by Elenia Finance Oyj are rated by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”), with most recent credit
rating published in November 2019. S&P upgraded the rating to BBB+ (outlook stable), having changed
the outlook from stable to positive in July 2019 after Elenia Oy announced the sale of the district heating
business and the use of the proceeds to be used to reduce leverage.

S&P regards the Sub-Group's business risk profile as excellent, mainly due to the fully regulated
electricity distribution business, which now accounts for approximately 99% of the group's EBITDA.
S&P also considers the Finnish regulatory framework for electricity distribution network companies to

be well established, predictable and supportive.
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The Group has two financial covenants in its finance documentation: interest coverage ratio (“ICR”) and
leverage ratio (*LR"). In 2018, the trigger event and event of default levels for both ICR and LR were
amended in accordance with the requirements of the Common Terms Agreement (“CTA")5 to mitigate
the impact of the IFRS 15 standard, which became effective on 1 January 2018 obliging the Group to
change the revenue recognition of connection charges. The change affected only figures such as
EBITDA that are reported in accordance with IFRS, it had no impact on FAS, taxes, cash flows or
regulatory accounting.

For each relevant period until 31 December 2027 (“the First Ratio Adjustment period”), the trigger event
ratio levels are 1.46x for ICR and 10.18x for LR and the default ratios are 0.96x for ICR and 11.33x for
LR. At end of 2019, the ICR and LR were 3.54x and 8.67x, respectively. The corresponding ratios at
the end of 2018 were 4.05x and 8.87x, respectively. The Group is in compliance with the financial
covenants. The Group retains adequate headroom to both financial covenants on a historical and
forward-looking basis.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) by a subsidiary are recognised at cost
and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in share premium. During 2019,

there was no change in the treasury shares value.

* Elenia’s financing is based on three core financial documents and all financiers are parties to these
agreements. These documents are CTA, Security Trust and Interceditor Deed (“STID”) and Master Definitions
Agreement (“MDA").
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7. Corporate Reorganisation

In November 2019 the Group launched a process to obtain consent from the secured creditors to
simplify the group structure through a group reorganisation and make certain amendments into its
finance documents. Over 95% of the secured creditors voted (based on the euro amount of the bonds)
and almost 92% of the secured creditors, who voted, voted in favour of the proposal. The Group started
to implement the changes immediately and the finance documents were amended on 20 December
2019. In preparation to the upcoming changes to the Group structure, Elenia Palvelut Oy established a
new fully owned subsidiary Elenia NewCo Oyj and Lakeside Network Investments S.a r.l, the parent of
the Group, (domiciled in Luxembourg) established a new fully owned subsidiary Elenia Investment S.a
r.l. Both of the newly established companies as well as Lakeside Network Investments S.a r.l. were

added as obligors into Elenia Oy's finance agreements on 30 December 2019.

The final steps of the reorganisation are expected to take place during July 2020, after which Elenia
Sub-Group structure will have two operating companies in Finland: Elenia Palvelut Oy and Elenia
Verkko Oyj°. Elenia Verkko Oyj will be the surviving entity from several mergers, including the mergers
of Elenia Oy and Elenia Finance Oyj. Elenia Verkko Qyj will therefore be the owner and operator of the
electricity distribution network and own all the network assets that currently reside in Elenia Oy.
Following completion of the reorganisation, Elenia Verkko Oyj will also act as the borrower under the
secured debt arrangements including all of the bank facilities as well as bonds and private placements
that now reside at Elenia Oy and Elenia Finance Oyj. After the reorganisation, Elenia Palvelut Oy will
be the parent of the operating group and Elenia Verkko Oyj will be the network licence holder” as well
as the issuer of bonds and notes. S&P has confirmed that the reorganisation will not have adverse
rating impact.

© Elenia Palvelut Oy will be renamed Elenia Oy and Elenia NewCo Oyj will be renamed Elenia Verkko Oyj.
? Elenia Newco Oyj has applied for a new network license from the EA on 4 December 2019,
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8. Employees

The Sub-Group changed its organisation in 2019 to streamline its operations and to enhance the
distinction between the regulated and unregulated businesses. The new organisation became effective
on 1 January 2019. There were several changes, but the most significant was the transfer of the project
management and construction business unit from Elenia Networks to Elenia Services. The number of

people transferred to Elenia Services was 78.

At the end of 2019, the Group employed 311 people (360 in 2018). The main driver for the lower
headcount is the disposal of the district heating business. The following table illustrates the headcount

and FTEs per company.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Headcount FTE Headcount FTE
Elenia Oy® 122 119 179 171
Elenia Lamp6 Oy n/a n/a 87 87
Elenia Palvelut Oy 189 170 94 80
Group Total 311 289 360 338

Close cooperation with local partner companies is an integral part of the Group’s operations. Including
the personnel of external sub-contractors, the Group’s business operations employ approximately 1,000
people.

9. Revised Strategy

In 2019, the Group reviewed its strategy at the wake of the disposal of the district heating business. A
new strategy was formulated separately for the network business and the service business, which now
includes also procurement and construction business and newly established fiber business in addition
to the customer service business. The Sub-Group's vision is to be the most responsible reformer of
electricity services and markets. The strategic goals are to earn the customers’ trust and approval,
aspire to be the most efficient network and service company in the industry, renew markets and create
new business, and combat climate change. The matters related to sustainability and corporate
responsibility have been brought to the forefront of Sub-Group’s strategy as further explained under title
“Corporate Responsibility”.

8 Includes also 2 people working at Elenia Finance Oyj and 1 person working at Elenia Group Oy.
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10. Acquisitions and Divestments

The disposal of Elenia Lampo Oy to a consortium of international infrastructure consisting of SL Capital
Infrastructure Il SCSP ("SL"), DIF Infrastructure V Cob&peratief U.A. ("DIF") and LPPI Infrastructure
Investments LP ("LPPI") was completed on 22 July 2019. The disposal had a substantial impact on the
Group's financial performance due to a capital gain (EUR 335.9 million) on the sale of shares in Elenia
Lampo Oy. The disposed business had a total revenue of EUR 41.8 million during 1 January 2019 - 22
July 2019 (EUR 77.0 million in 2018). The disposed business had EBITDA of EUR 13.7 million during
1 January 2019 — 22 July 2019 (EUR 25.02 million in 2018).

11. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of the Sub-Group has eight members: Timo Rajala (Chairman), Sirpa Ojala,
Mark Braithwaite, Thomas Metzger, Michael Pfennig, Eduard Fidler, Tapani Liuhala and Jorma
Myllymaki. There was only one change to the Board composition during 2019; on 18 November Joerg
Spanier ceased to be a Board Member and Eduard Fidler was nominated as the Board Member. The
Board convened seven times during 2019 with an attendance of 96.4%.

The Board has three committees: audit and risk committee (five meetings during 2019), remuneration
and nomination committee (three meetings during 2019) and safety, health, environment and security
committee (three meetings during 2019). Audit and risk committee is chaired by Mark Braithwaite and
other members are Sirpa Ojala and Eduard Fidler. The remuneration and nomination committee is
chaired by Timo Rajala and other members are Mark Braithwaite, Michael Pfennig and Sirpa Ojala. The
safety, health, environment and security committee is chaired by Thomas Metzger and other members
are Sirpa Ojala, Jorma Myllymaki, and Eduard Fidler (who replaced Michael Pfennig in November
2019).

The management team consists of Tapani Liuhala (CEQ), Jorma Myllyméki (Deputy CEO of Elenia Oy),
Ville Sihvola (Deputy CEO of Elenia Palvelut Oy), Jarkko Kohtala (Director, Head of Procurement and
Construction), Heini Kuusela-Opas (Head of Communications), Marianne Kihiman (Head of HR), Jenni
Heinisuo (ClO), Teemu Hovi (Head of Legal and Risk Management) and Tommi Valento (CFO). Jouni
Pylvanainen resigned from his position as Head of Strategic Development in January 2019. There were
no other changes to the management team during 2019.

The Board of Managers of the Company has convened four times in 2019. No changes is the Board of

Managers structure of the Company occurred in 2019

14



12. Research and development

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) by Research and development ("R&D”)
costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. Research and development
costs are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss under personnel costs and other
operating expenses. As research expenses, these costs do not meet the criteria for capitalisation. The
total amount of R&D expense was EUR 1.6 million (2018: EUR 2.5 million).

13. Corporate Responsibility

The Sub-Group's sustainability program is aligned with the UN’'s Sustainable Development Goals
("SDGs") of which six goals have been selected with strong links to the Group's business and
operations. The goals are related to:

¢ Affordable and clean energy to all (SDG 7)

e Decent work and economic growth (SDG 8)

e Industry, innovation and infrastructure (SDG 8)
e Sustainable cities and communities (SDG 11)
e Climate action (SDG 13)

e Partnerships for the goals (SDG17)

For each of the six goals, the management has set specific goals and the related KPIs are reported and
followed on a monthly basis. In 2019, the Sub-Group continued the development of its sustainability
programme and reporting is based on Global Reporting Initiative standards. The first report was

published in 2019 and the second, more comprehensive report will be published in 2020.

In 2019, the Sub-Group participated for the second time in the Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark ("GRESB") Infrastructure Assessment. GRESB is a responsibility-focused research and
benchmarking organisation tailored to real estate and infrastructure companies. It works to promote
operational responsibility and to gather valuable international data to compare the operations and
performance of companies. The GRESB assessment looks at the environmental, social and

governance ("ESG") performance of a company and how it has succeeded in the three areas.

A total of 393 infrastructure companies took part in the GRESB Infrastructure Assessment around the
world. The Sub-Group scored full five stars in the assessment and a total score of 89 (81 in 2018),
which is well above average of the infrastructure companies taking part in the assessment. The Sub-
Group placed 5" in the total results. Out of the 236 European companies, Elenia Network was 3. Qut

of the seven electricity European distribution companies, Elenia Networks placed first.
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Elenia Network will utilise the GRESB Assessment's results in developing and executing its own ESG
development programme as well as in following the development of the industry. Elenia Network intends
to participate in the GRESB assessment also in 2020.

The Group aims to ensure that its employees and partners work in a safe and motivating environment.
In addition to highly competent and professional employees, the safety work is based on safe

equipment, processes and operating models as well as visible safety management.

In addition, the Group provides its employees with general information on topical occupational safety
and environmental issues and an opportunity to participate in training that facilitates the improvement
of their professional skills and competences. Supervisors and employees working on site are required
to successfully complete Occupational Safety Card training and ensure that their statutory qualifications
are up to date. Compliance with regulations is monitored regularly. The Group has an externally certified
occupational health and safety management system in place, since 2009 in accordance with OHSAS
18001 and since May 2018 in accordance with the new international ISO 45001:2018 standard.

The Group operates in accordance with the principle of continuous improvement with the aim of being
a leading company in occupational safety. The Group and its extensive partner network have a target
of zero occupational accidents and zero defects in all stages of construction. In 2019, Elenia Networks
together with its partners had Loss Time Injury Frequency® of 5.9 (5.2 in 2018). In January 2019, Elenia
Networks signed the Safety Manifesto with its main contractors, aiming to show that they are jointly
committed to safety work and that everyone is entitled to return home healthy after work. The Safety
Manifesto is a continuation of Safely back Home -project that was started in 2018.

? Lost Time Injury Frequency (LTIF), the number of lost time injuries occurring in all Elenia Networks’ activities
per 1 million internal as well as external hours worked. Lost time injuries include all on-the-job injuries that
require a person to stay away from work more than 1 day. Total LTIF = (ELTI*1.000.000 h) / (Cumulative
internal & external hours).
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14. Environmental Matters

Elenia Networks and Elenia Services have systematic Environmental Management Systems (“EMS”).
Since 2008, Elenia Networks has been certified as having an ISO 14001 EMS. In 2016, Elenia
Networks’ and Elenia Services’ EMS were recertified to 1ISO 14001:2015. In addition, external sub-
contractors are required to have environmental management systems that support environmental work
and are in line with the ISO 14001 standard.

The most significant environmental aspects of Sub-Group's operations are related to land use, the
protection of soil and water areas, waste handling, the preservation of biodiversity, the control of
greenhouse gas emissions and material and energy efficiency. In line with its strategy, the Group takes
safety and the environment into consideration in all decision-making through the development and use
of its Environmental Policy for sustainable development. Environmental matters are integral to Group's
corporate culture, and its operations are based on continuous improvement. The goal is to reduce the

environmental effects of all operations and lead the way in environmental management in the industry.

15. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Sub-Group has continued to streamline its organisation and on 1 January 2020 the new
organisation came into force. There were number of smaller changes, but the key change was the
transfer of the support functions and related staff from Elenia Networks to Elenia Services affecting 38
people.

The Group continued to implement the reorganisation in order to simplify its group structure. On 1
January 2020 Elenia Services ceased to be a subsidiary of Elenia Networks. On 2 January 2020 certain
share-for-share exchanges were carried out transferring Lakeside Network Investments Holding B.V.
shares to Elenia NewCo Oyj. Following the aforementioned transactions, Elenia Services is the indirect
parent of Elenia Networks. On 14 February 2020 the merger plans of Elenia Networks and Elenia
Finance were filed at the trade register. Both mergers are expected to be implemented on or about 1
July 2020,

Elenia doesn't currently foresee that Covid-19 virus outbreak would have material impact on Elenia’s
business. However, if the outbreak will continue for prolonged period with substantial decline in
industrial production, it could have an impact on the revenues and EBITDA of Elenia. Elenia's customer
base is very well diversified and hence the impact of individual customers is very limited. Please also

note that the regulatory model allows Elenia to recoup any underrecovery in the coming years.
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Elenia has very strong liquidity position as a result of the recent EUR 500m bond issuance and the
undrawn bank facilities totalling EUR 470m with very limited refinancing needs in the next years. Elenia
is also taking substantial and conclusive measures to reduce the impact of potential larger scale

epidemic on its operations.

On 16 January 2020 the Ministry of Economic Affairs and Economy from Finland published a draft
government bill that, if enacted, will impact the business of the Group. The proposed key changes are:

e DSO’s — such as Elenia Networks - who have medium-voltage line underground cabling rate
below 60% (at the end of 2018) would have until end of 2036 to comply with the full quality
requirements (as opposed to end of 2028 as currently included in the EMA)

e DSOs would be allowed to increase their electricity distribution tariffs by up to an aggregate
12.5% (on tariffs after taxes) over any rolling 12-month period. The current cap is 15%

e The offsetting period of cumulative regulatory deficit would be prolonged from four to eight years
i.e. two consecutive regulatory periods

e The network development plan would be reviewed more extensively by the EA to make sure
that the DSOs invest efficiently and consider also other alternatives to investments. A DSO
would need to hear its appropriate customers regarding the network development plan, and the
network development plan needs to be published together with the hearing results

¢ The level of mandatory compensations payable on outages that last more than 12 hours would

be increased in cases where the outage last more than 48 hours

The Sub-Group submitted its comments to the draft bill prior to the deadline of 14 February 2020,
Generally, Elenia Networks sees all endeavours reducing the pressure on distribution tariffs positive
and hence has reservedly positive predisposition towards the changes and especially to the practical

implications that the changes entail.

In January 2020 Elenia Finance Oyj issued a EUR 500 million benchmark bond with a seven-year
maturity. The coupon of the bond was set at 0.375%, making it the lowest coupon paid in the history of
the Group. The new issuance will extend the weighted average maturity and lower interest costs. The
funds will be used for general corporate purposes including the refinancing of the remaining
approximately EUR 89 million portion of the previous EUR 500 million bond maturing in December 2020

as well refinancing of the existing bank facilities.
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16. Outlook

Customers, as well as the surrounding society, require secure supply of electricity and also faster and
more reliable internet connections now and in the future. In order to meet these expectations, Elenia
Networks has prepared an investment plan which emphasises the significance of underground cabling
to ensure the security of electricity supply. Additionally, Elenia Network has also entered into broadband
fiber business. In certain network areas Elenia Networks lays down fiber optic broadband cables at the
same time when new electricity underground cables are installed, which improves efficiency and
sustainability. Previously Elenia Networks has cooperated with broadband telecom companies in co-
construction projects in areas where existing telecom companies have been expanding their network
and this work continues in areas where other fiber operators are available. Entry into the fiber business
means that Elenia Networks offers fiber access in areas where is installing underground cables and

none of the telecom companies currently have existing broadband network.

The Sub-Group’s target is to increase the underground cabling rate of the electricity distribution network
to 75% by 2028. This requires substantial investments. The Group’s investments in the electricity
distribution network will be over EUR 160 million in 2020.

The EA has confirmed that the regulatory reasonable return is 5.73% for 2020. The Sub-Group is
forecasting a regulatory deficit for 2019 and a cumulative regulatory deficit for the entire fourth
regulatory period. This regulatory deficit will be carried over to the fifth regulatory period. The EA will
confirm these numbers, along with all other regulatory numbers, in its regulatory decision, which is

expected during later in 2020 or in early 2021.
Luxembourg, 18 March 2020

On behalf of the Board of Managers of the Company

ﬂo M QJ@/

Rosa Villalobos Thomas Metzger
Manager Manager
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of
Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
20, Boulevard Royal
L-2449 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elenia Holdings S.ar.l. and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (the “Law of

23 July 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs”) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
“Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (‘CSSF”). Our responsibilities under the Law of 23 July
2016 and ISAs are further described in the “responsibilities of the “réviseur d'entreprises agréé” for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Board of Managers is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the consolidated management report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our report of the “réviseur d'entreprises agréé” thereon.

i )
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Managers and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal
control as the Board of Managers determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Managers is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Managers either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
‘réviseur d’entreprises agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-21-
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accou nting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Managers.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Managers' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the “réviseur
d'entreprises agrée” to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our report of the “réviseur d’entreprises agrée”. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has been

prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Ernst & Young
Société anonyme
Cabinet de révision agréé

et?‘?-[*&

gn Ahmed

Luxembourg, 19 March 2020
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Elenia Holdings S.a r.l.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 1 January 2019 -31 1 January 2018 - 31

December 2019 December 2018
EUR 1,000 Re-presented
Continuing operations
Revenue 211 295,558 272,728
Other operating income 2.2.1 3,016 2,822
Materials and services (76,291) (74,887)
Employee benefit expenses 2.33 (14,241) (13,577)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment* 3 (83,908) (78,023)
Other operating expenses* 2.3.1 (25,491) (17,782)
Operating profit 98,643 91,281
Finance income 873 235
Finance costs* (85,051) (93,757)
Finance income and costs 4.1 (84,178) (93,522)
Profit( (loss) before tax from continuing operations 14,465 (2,241)
Income tax 6.1.1 (2,572) (5,298)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations 11,893 (7,539)
Discontinued operations 54
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 335,911 -
Profit after tax for the year from discontinued operations 8,250 14,342
Profit for the year 356,054 6,803

In July 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampé Oy
which has been reported as a discontinued operation in income statements. The notes of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of continuous operations. See
Note 5.4 for more information about the discontinued operation.

*According to IFRS 16 Leases - lease commitments are reported from 1 January 2019 onwards in
consolidated financia position in fixed assets and borrowings. In consolidated statement of profit or loss
leases are reported as depreciation costs and interest costs. See Note 3.3 for more information about
IFRS 16 Leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.L

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 January 2019 -
31 December

1 January 2018 -
31 December

2019 2018
EUR 1,000 Re-presented
Profit for the year 356,054 6,803
Other comprehensive income, continuing operations
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (27) 44
Income tax effect 5 (9)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year after tax (22) 35
Other comprehensive income, discontinued operations
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 538 12
Income tax effect (1) (2)
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax 537 10
Total comprehensive profit for the year 356,569 6,848

In July 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampé Oy
which has been reported as a discontinued operation in income statements. The notes of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of continuous operations. See Note 5.4 for more

information about the discontinued operation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Elenia Holdings S.a r.l.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2019

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Note
EUR 1,000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 31 1,391,762 1,420,589
Intangible assets 3.2 437,480 603,602
Right-of-use assets* 31,33 9,015 -
Investments in associates 5.5 - 774
Other non-current financial assets 194 196
Other interest bearing receivables 6.4 159,376 476
Deferred tax assets 6.1.2 4,421 2914
Total non-current assets 2,002,248 2,028,551
Current assets
Inventories 6.2 - 3,447
Trade receivables 214 20,148 19,786
Other current receivables 2.1.4 39,930 49,650
Cash and cash equivalents 29,278 17,417
Total current assets 89,356 90,300
Total assets 2,091,604 2,118,851
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 44 14 14
Unrestricted equity 44 2,037 2,037
Retained earnings 217,098 (139.471)
Treasury shares 4.4 (2) (2)
Total equity 219,147 -137,422
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 4.2 370,000 18,000
Bonds and notes 4.2 1,183,897 1,682,305
Other long-term loans 42 - 252,185
Lease liabilities* 3.3 5,800 8,608
Employee benefit liability 6.3 473 1,105
Provisions 234 7,907 8,711
Liabilities related to contracts with customers 2.1.3 15,899 9,397
Other long-term liabilities 946 1,147
Deferred tax liabilities 6.1.2 115,720 142 924
Total non-current liabilities 1,700,642 2,124,382
Current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 4.2 - 40,000
Bonds and notes 4.2 88,920 -
Lease liabilities* 232,83 4,428 3772
Trade payables 232 10,578 15,266
Liabilities related to contracts with customers 21.3 568 330
Other current liabilities 2:3:2 67321 72,523
Total current liabilities 171,815 131,891
Total equity and liabilities 2,091,604 _2__,ﬁ8,851

*According to IFRS 16 Leases - lease commitments are reported from 1 January 2019 onwards in consolidated financia
position in fixed assets and borrowings. See Note 3.3 for more information about IFRS 16 Leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Elenia Holdings S.a r.l.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 January 2019 -
31 December

1 January 2018 .
31 December

2019 2018
EUR 1,000
Operating activities
Profit for the year 356,054 6,803
Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash flows
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 89,730 89,496
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations (335,892) -
Finance income (877) (255)
Finance costs 85,051 93,771
Share of profit of an associate - (143)
Taxes 2,165 4,453
Other adjustments 30 (84)
Other short-term and low value rental expenses* 232 =
Working capital adjustments
Increase (-) / decrease (+) in inventories 352 683
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in trade and other current liabilities 12,550 10,166
Increase (-) / decrease (+) in trade and other current receivables 2,497 (3,156)
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in provisions 388 (304)
Dividends received 48 96
Interests received 199 248
Interest and financial expenses paid (65,181) (47,541)
Interest paid on other long-term loans (15,747) (34,746)
Interest paid on lease liabilities™ (1,082) =
Taxes paid (11,627) (35)
Net cash flows from operating activities 118,890 119,452
Investing activities
Proceeds from discontinued operations 581,522 -
Capital expenditure (166,098) (158,715)
Changes in loans - (125)
Changes in investments 25 (21)
Net cash flows from/ (used) in investing activities 415,449 (158,861)
Financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings & 40,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings (40,000) 5
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 495,000 179,000
Repayment of long-term borrowings (806,161) (182,224)
Payment of debt arrangement costs (489) (444)
Repayment of lease liabilities* (4,836) (4,101)
Loans granted (158,220) 2
Net cash flows from financing activities (514,706) 32,231
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 19,633 (7,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 17,417 24,595
Change in cash and cash equivalents 11,861 (7,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 29,278 17,417
Cash and cash equivalents, Discontinued operations (Note 5.4) 7,772 -

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash balance at bank accounts.

In July 2018, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampd Oy which has been
reported as a discontinued operation in income statements. In the consolidated statements of cash flows figures for 2018 are
not re-presented. For more information about the cash flow impact and discontinued operation see Note 5.

* According to IFRS 16 Lease, payments are deducted from operating activities and added to financing activities in cash flow

statements. For more information about IFRS 16 Leases and its impact®, see Note 3.3.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Elenia Holdings S.a r.l.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2019

EUR 1,000
Equity at 1 January 2018
Loss for the year, continuing operations
Profit for the year, discontinued operations
Other components of comprehensive income (adjusted by tax effect)
Change in defined benefit plans, continuing operations
Change in defined benefit plans, discontinued operations
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with shareholders

Total transactions with shareholders

Equity at 31 December 2018

for the year ended 31 December 2019

EUR 1,000
Equity at 1 January 2019
Profit for the year, continuing operations
Profit for the year, discontinued operations
Change in defined benefit plans, continuing operations
Change in defined benefit plans, discontinued operations
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with shareholders
Total transactions with shareholders

Equity at 31 December 2019

Share Share Retained Treasury Total
capital permium earnings shares equity
14 2,037 (146,319) (2) (144,270)

- - (7,539) - (7,539)

. - 14,342 - 14,342

; . 35 5 35

s - 10 5 10

- - 6,848 - 6,848

14 2,037 (139,471) {2} (137,422)
Share Share Retained Treasury Total
capital permium earnings shares equity
14 2,037 (139,471) (2) (137,422)

- - 11,893 - 11,893

i - 344,161 - 344 161

. - (22) - (22)

- - 537 - 537

- = 356,569 b 356,569

14 2,037 217,098 (2) 219,147

When applying IFRS 16 Leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities; therefore retained

earnings have not been adjusted as at 1 January 2018.

In July 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampé Oy which has been reported as a
discontinued operation in income statements. The notes of the consolidated statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of

continuous operations. See Note 5.4 for more information about the discontinued operation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Other operating income

2.2.1 Other operating income (Accounting policy)

Other operating income includes income from non-operating activities, such as income from trade
receivables collection and from sales of used fixed assets, insurance compensation and rental income.
Also possible gains from the sales of emission rights are included in other operating income.

Government grants relating to the other purpose than the purchase of property, plant and equipment are

recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in which the
expenses relating to the grant are incurred and in which the decision on the grant is received.

Other operating income

EUR 1,000 1 January 2019 - 1 January 2018 -
31 December 31 December

2019 2018

re-presented

Rental income 28 25
Indemnities 210 1
Capital gains on tangible and intangible assets - 25
Income from the trade receivables collection 1,084 915
Income from the sales of obsolete materials and used fixed assets 889 1,220
Other operating income 805 636
Total, continuing operations 3,016 2,822

In July 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampé Oy which
has been reported as a discontinued operation in income statements. The notes of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of continuous operations. See Note 5.4 for more
information about the discontinued operation.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3.2 Trade and other current payables
Currency risk

The Group operates in Finland and uses the Euro as its primary operating currency. The Group's currency risk is based
on purchases of raw materials and services denominated in currencies other than the Euro. The purchases of raw
materials and services denominated in currencies other than the Euro have a negative effect on Group's result and
cash flow in the event that the currencies in question appreciate against the Euro. As the Group's purchasing
operations are currently primarily focused on Finland, the currency risk related to purchasing is limited.

The Group has guidelines for the management of currency risk as part of the purchasing policy for network operations
approved by the Executive Board. According to the guidelines, currency risks that have an impact on profit or loss are
hedged either operationally through contractual currency rate clauses or, if that is not possible, through forward
contracts concluded by the Treasury unit.

Operating profit includes EUR 11.2 thousand exchange rate differences (2018: EUR 7.6 thousand). Finance costs
include EUR 2.3 thousand exchange rate differences (2018: EUR -6.6 thousand). At the end of 2019 there were total
amount of EUR 0.1 million liabilities in British Pounds, Swedish Krona and US Dollars and no receivables in other

currencies than in EUR.

EUR 1,000 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Short-term financial lease liabilities 4,428 3772
Trade payables 10,578 15,266
Accrued expenses
Employee benefits expenses 4 823 6,617
Interest expenses 13,282 14,217
Other accrued expenses 17,079 17,710
Liabilities related to contracts with customers 568 330
Other liabilities
VAT liability 15,146 13,387
Energy taxes 9,742 9,330
Tax liability for the period 1 6,005
Prepayments received 1,229 778
Other liabilities 6,019 4479
Total 82,895 91,891

According to the management’s estimate, the fair value of trade and other payables does not materially deviate from the

balance sheet value.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 14-30 days terms.

Other accrued expenses comprise mainly of deferred material and service purchases as well as deferred financing items.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3.4 Provisions

Provisions (Accounting policy)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events to a

third party, provided that it is probable that the obligation will be realised and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions (Accounting estimates)

Electricity network connection fees, which have been paid by the customers prior to 2008, must be refunded net of
demolition costs, if the customer wants to terminate the electricity connection. Similar refunding obligation has applied

to all district heating connection fees.

A provision for refundable connection fees for electricity and heating networks has been calculated by discounting
estimated future annual connection fee refunds to their present value. The calculation is based on the management's
estimate of the volume and timing of refundable connection fees. The historical level of refunded connection fees is
taken into account while compiling the calculations and the discount rates applied correspond to the rates used in

impairment testing of goodwill.

Provisions
As at 31 December 2019

EUR 1,000

Provisions at 1 January 2019
Discontinued operations (Note 5.4)
Increase

Cancellations of provisions

Use of provisions

Provisions at 31 December 2019

Provisions
As at 31 December 2018

EUR 1,000

Provisions at 1 January 2018
Increase

Cancellations of provisions

Use of provisions

Provisions at 31 December 2018

Provision for Provision for Provision for Total
costs related to rental liabilities refunds of
oil leakage for premises connection fees
cleanup
110 - 8,601 8,711
(110) - (1,119) (1,229)
- - 762 762
- - (337) (337)
- . 7,907 7,907
Provision for Provision for Provision for Total
costs related to rental liabilities refunds of
oil leakage for premises connection fees
cleanup
< = 9,015 9,015
110 - 176 286
- - (192) (192)
- - (398) (398)
110 : 8,601| 8,711
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.2 Financial assets and liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The initial measurement of financial instruments is made at fair value for all financial assets. Financial
assets that are debt instruments and to which the fair value option is not applied are measured following
initial recognition either at amortised cost or fair value, depending on the company’s business model for
the management of financial assets and contractual cash flows of the financial assets.

As a rule, all equity instruments are measured at fair value following the initial measurement, either
through consolidated statement of profit or loss or through consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income. All equity instruments held for trading are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. Items
that are recognised through other comprehensive income will no longer be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss if the entity has elected to measure it at fair value through consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

With regard to financial liabilities, the main amendment is that when applying the fair value option, the
effect of changes in the entity's own credit risk on the fair value of the financial liability will be recognised
through other comprehensive income. These changes in value recognised through other comprehensive
income will no longer be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The impairment requirements introduced in IFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss model. In
addition, IFRS 9 standard comprises a new hedge accounting model in which the criteria for applying the
hedge accounting are relieved and more designations of groups of items as the hedged items are possible.
The new hedge accounting model aims to enable companies to better reflect their risk management
strategy and objectives in the financial statements.

The Group has adapted the new standard on the required effective date but comparative information has
not been restated. Overall, the effect of the IFRS 9 standard on the consolidated financial statements has
not been very significant. However, applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 has had an impact on
the method used in calculation of the credit loss allowance for trade receivables, but the amount of credit
loss allowances has not changed remarkably. The Group has applied the simplified approach and
recorded lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables.

The requirements of the new standard were initailly applied on 1 January 2018.

44



Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Accounting policy)

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset or a liability is classified as current when it is expected to be realised within twelve months after
the financial year end or it is classified as financial assets or liabilities held at fair value through profit or
loss. Liquid funds are classified as current assets.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

4.2.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less.

4.2.2 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are classified as financial assets carried at amoritsed cost,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS15. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 2.1.1
Revenue from contracts with customers.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.2 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Financial assets carried at amortised cost also include trade receivables and other
receivables. Loans are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less accumulated impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced using an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as
finance income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IFRS 9.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) or finance income (positive net
changes in fair value) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at their initial
recognition date and only if the criteria under IFRS 9 are satisfied.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (OC/)

Derivatives are measured at fair value and gains and losses from fair value measurement are treated as determined by the
purpose of the derivatives. The effects on results of changes in the value of derivatives that are eligible for hedge accounting
and that are effective hedging instruments are presented consistent with the hedged item.

Derivatives eligible for hedge accounting are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as financial income or costs.
The group had no derivatives at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows have expired; or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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4.2 Financial assets and liabilities

4.2.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

ECL' are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default evets that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and other receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

4.2.4 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of FRS 9 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the

Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

4.2.5 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial

position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.
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4.2.6 Carrying amounts by category and maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

Carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category

Values at 31 December 2019

Balance sheet item, EUR 1,000 Note Amortised cost  Fair value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
through through other of balance sheet
profitand comprehensive items
loss income
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 214 20,148 - - 20,148 20,148
Other current receivables 214 39,930 - - 39,930 39,930
Cash and cash equivalents 29,278 - - 29,278 29,278
Total Current assets 89,356 - - 89,356 89,356
Carrying amount by category 89,356 0 - 89,356 89,356
Non-current financial liabilities
Bonds and notes 4289 (1,183,897) - - (1,183,897) (1,376,431)
Loans from financial institutions 4.2.8-9 (370,000) - - (370,000) (370,000)
Other long-term loans 4.2.8-9 - - - - -
Interest-bearing non-current liabilities
- Leases 33 (5,800) - - (5,800) (5,800)
Total interest-bearing non-current liabilities (1,559,697) - - (1,559,697) (1,752,231)
Current financial liabilities
Bonds and notes 4.2.89 (88,920) - - (88,920) (91,667)
Loans from financial institutions 4.2.8-9 - - - - -
Other current interest-bearing liabilities
- Leases 3.3 (4,428) - - (4,428) (4,428)
Trade payables and other current liabilities 232 (77,899) - - (77,899) (77,899)
Total current financial liabilities (171,247) - - (171,247) (173,994)
Carrying amount by category (1,730,944) - - (1,730,944) (1,926,225)
Values at 31 December 2018
Balance sheet item, EUR 1,000 Note Amortised cost  Fair value Fairvalue Carrying value Fair value
through through other of balance sheet
profitand comprehensive items
loss income

Current financial assets
Trade receivables 214 18,786 - 19,786 19,786
Other current receivables 214 48,650 - 49,650 49,650
Cash and cash equivalents 17,417 - - 17,417 17,417
Total Current assets 86,853 - r 86,853 86,853|
Carrying amount by category 86,853 - - 86,853 86,853]
Non-current financial liabilities
Bonds and notes 4289 (1,682,305) - - (1,682,305) (1,776,388)
Loans from financial institutions 4.2.8-9 (18,000) - (18,000) (18,000}
Other long-term loans 4.2.8-9 (252,185) - - (252,185) (262,107)
Interest-bearing non-current liabilities
- Finance leases 33 (8,608) - - (8,608) (8,608)
Total interest-bearing non-current liabilities (1,961,098) - - {1,961,098) (2,065,103)
Current financial liabilities
Bonds and notes 4289 - - - - -
Loans from financial institutions 4,289 (40,000) - - (40,000) {40,000)
Other current interest-bearing liabilities
- Finance leases 33 (3,772) - - (3,772) (3,772)
Trade payables and other current liabilities 232 (87,459) - E (87,459) (87,459)
Total current financial liabilities (131,231) - - (131,231) (131,231)
Carrying amount by category (2,092,329) - - (2,092,329) (2,196,334)
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Cash at banks and on hand

The Group had short-term bank deposits amounting to EUR 29.3 million (2018: EUR 17.4 million). All bank deposits were denominated in euros.

Bonds and notes

The fair value of the bonds have been calculated using the market quotes at the balance sheet date. For calculating the fair value of the bonds and
notes without market quote, the market quotes of the corresponding bonds have been used.

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities decreased by EUR 351.8 million (2018: EUR 40.9 million) during the year, and interest-bearing liabilities at the balance
sheet date totalled EUR 1,653.0 million (2018: EUR 2,004.9 million).

The fair value of Other long-term loans has been calculated by using the market value of Finnish benchmark government 10 year bonds at the
balance sheet date. The fair value of short-term trade receivables and payables, other non-interest-bearing receivables, finance leases and cash and

cash equivalents corresponds essentially the carrying amount.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual payments.

31 December 2019 Maturity
EUR 1,000 Effective Within 1 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
interest rate % year

Loans from financial institutions 0.44% - 370,000 - 370,000
Bonds 2.98% - - 671,000 671,000
Notes 271% - - 518,500 518,500
Other long-term loans - - = -
Lease liabilities - 5,800 - 5,800
Total interest-bearing non-current liabilities 1,565,300
Loans from financial institutions . - - -
Bonds 2.88% 89,024 - - 89,024
Lease liabilities 4,428 - - 4428
Total current interest-bearing liabilities 93,452
Trade payables 10,758 - - 10,758
Total current financial liabilities 10,758
Total 104,210 375,800 1,189,500 1,669,510
31 December 2018 Maturity

EUR 1,000 Effective Within 1 1-5 years Over 5 years Total

interest rate % year

Loans from financial institutions 0.48% - 18,000 - 18,000
Bonds 2.94% - 500,000 671,000 1,171,000
Notes 2.71% - - 518,500 518,500
Other long-term loans 12.00% - - 252,185 252,185
Finance lease liabilities - 8,608 - 8,608
Total interest-bearing non-current liabilities 1,968,293
Loans from financial institutions 0.48% 40,000 - 40,000
Bonds - - - -
Finance lease liabilities 3,772 - - 3,772
Total current interest-bearing liabilities 43,772
Trade payables 15,266 - - 15,266
Total current financial liabilities 15,266
Total 59,038 526,608 1,441,685 2,027,331
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4.2.7 Changes in financial liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

EUR 1,000 1January Cash New Other 31 December
2019 flows leases changes 2019

Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 40,000 (40,000) - 88,920 88,920

(excl. items listed below)

Current obligations under lease liabilities 3,772  (4,604) 866 4,394 4,428

Non-current interest-bearing loans and 1,952,490 (311,161) - (87,432) 1,553,897

borrowings (excl. items listed below)

Non-current obligations under lease liabilities 8,608 - 1,728  (4,538) 5,800

EUR 1,000 1 January Cash New Other 31 December
2018 flows leases changes 2018

Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings - 40,000 - - 40,000

(excl. items listed below)

Current obligations under lease liabilities 4,068 (4,101) - 3,804 3,772

Non-current interest-bearing loans and 1,947 466 (3.274) - 8,298 1,952,490

borrowings (excl. items listed below)

Non-current obligations under lease liabilities 12,412 - - (3,804) 8,608

The "Other changes" column includes the effect of reclassification of non-current
finance leases to current due to passage of time, the effect of capitalization of interests of other long-term
loans and the effect amortisation of transaction costs of bonds and notes using the effective interest rate
method. In addition, 2019 movement includes EUR 88,920 thousand transfer from non-current interest-
bearing loans and borrowings to current interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group classifies interest paid as cash flows from operating activities.
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4.2.9 Risk management
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of the Group not having adequate liquid assets to finance its operations, pay interest and repay its
loans.

The management of liquidity risk is divided into short-term and long-term liquidity management. Short-term liquidity risk is
managed by cash flow planning that takes into account the expected trade receivables, trade payables and other known
expenses for a period of two weeks. The adequacy of long-term liquidity is assessed by 12-month forecasts conducted monthly.

Cash and cash equivalents and committed unutilized credit facilities

31 December 2019

{EUR 1,000 Facility Inuse Available Maturity
amount amount

Capex facility 350,000 320,000 30,000 1-5 years

Working Capital facility 60,000 - 60,000 1-5 years

Liquidity facility 60,000 - 60,000 Over 5 years

EIB credit facility 150,000 50,000 100,000 Over 5 years

Cash and cash equivalents 29,278

Total 620,000 370,000 279,278

Refinancing risk

Elenia Finance Oyj issues bonds and notes. Bonds are issued under the EUR 3 billion EMTN programme and listed at the
London Stock Exchange. Notes are unlisted private placements targeted mostly to the US investors through private
placements.

At the end of 2019, the Group has borrowed from the international banks EUR 320.0 million using the Capex Facility (2018:
EUR 18.0 million). There were no borrowings from Working Capital Facility (2018; EUR 40.0 million). In December 2018, Elenia
Oy agreed on EUR 150.0 million credit with European Investment Bank. The loan can be drawn within 18 months from the
agreement and the maturity of the loans will be 7-10 years from the drawdown. At the end of 2019, there were EUR 50 million
drawdown from the credit facility maturing in 2030 (2018: no drawdowns). At the end of 2019, the Group does not have other
long-term loans which are subordinated to the bonds and notes (2018: EUR 252.2 million). .

In November 2019, the Group published the tender offer regarding EUR 500 million Bond maturing in December 2020. Amount
of the submitted tenders was EUR 411.0 million, which was repaid to the investors in December 2019. The Group has not
issued any bonds or private placements during 2019.

The bonds are listed on London Stock Exchange. The Group's subsidiaries, Elenia Oy and Elenia Palvelut Oy, have given EUR
1,278.5 million joint guarantees relating to the loans from financial institutions, bonds and notes. The Group's financial structure
has financial covenants relating to interest cover and leverage. The covenants are typical in such arrangements. There were no
covenant breaches in 2019. Elenia Finance Oyj monitors the financial markets in order to carry out loan refinancing at an
appropriate time, ahead of the due date of the current loans.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly through its interest-bearing net debt. The objective of the Group's interest rate
risk management is to limit volatility of interest expenses in the income statement. The Group's interest rate risk management is
handled by Group Treasury,

The interest rate risk is managed by entering into interest rate swaps and by drawdown of loans with fixed interest. At the
balance sheet date 76% (2018: 95%) of the loans were fixed rate loans.

A parallel shift of +/- 1.0 percentage points in the interest rate curve at the balance sheet date would have EUR +/- 4.0 million
(2018: +/-0.5 million) effect on the interests relating to floating rate loans.

Counterparty risk

Accepted financial counterparties are counterparties approved in existing financing agreements and other counterparties
separately approved by the Board of Group entities.
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4.3 Other commitments and contingencies

Other commitments

EUR 1,000 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Registered floating charges:
Provided on behalf of own and Group liabilities 13,500,000 18,000,000
Mortgages 206,600 233,600
Refundable connection fees 283,050 317,274
Loan commitment to Lakeside Network Investment Holding B.V, 302 522
Loan commitment to Elenia Group Oy 267,322 -

Group bank accounts have been pledged as security for loans from financial institutions and bonds.

4.4 Equity
Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 13 November 2013 with a subscribed and fully paid-up capital of EUR 12,500, divided
into 1,250,000 shares with a nominal value of EUR 0.01 each.

On 13 December 2013, the subscribed capital has been increased by an amount of EUR 1,500 by issuance of 150,000
shares with a nominal value of EUR 0.01 each to a new shareholder called Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.ar.l., a Group entity.
In the consolidation under IFRS of the Group these shares have been treated as treasury shares.

As at 31 December 2014, the subscribed capital is divided into 1,400,000 shares fully paid-up with a nominal value of EUR
0.01 each. Each of these shares has the same voting rights and each shareholder has voting rights commensurate with his

shareholding. Each share entitles to a fraction of the corporate assets and profits of the Company in direct proportion to the
number of shares in existence.

On 17 December 2013, the Company issued subordinated profit participating securities (SPPS) to its shareholder Elenia

Finance (SPPS) S.a r.l., which is also part of the Group. In 2014, the Company issued additional SPPS to its shareholder
Finance (SPPS) S.ar.l.

On 19 August 2015, the Company issued additional SPPS for an amount of EUR 75 million. They were all subscribed by
Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.a r.l. pursuant to a subscription agreement by and between the Company and Elenia Finance
(SPPS) S.ar.l.

In 2016, the Company issued additional SPPS to its shareholder Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.ar.l. for the total amount of EUR

257.2 million. In 2017, the Company issued additional SPPS to its shareholder Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.a r.l. for a total
amount of EUR 213.5 million,

During the financial year 2018, the Company issued additional SPPS to its shareholder Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.ar.l for a
total amount of EUR 161.5 million.

These SPPS have been used by the Company to increase its equity in Elenia Oy, which are eliminated as part of the
consolidation.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s share capital amounts to EUR 14 thousand (2018: EUR 14 thousand).

During the financial year 2019, no additional SPPS were issued.
Legal reserve

In accordance with Luxembourg law, the Company is required to allocate to a legal reserve a minimum of 5% of the annual
net income, until this reserve equals 10% of the subscribed share capital. This reserve may not be distributed.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5.4 Discontinued operations

Accounting policy

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the
incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement of financial
position.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and:

* Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

* Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
Or

* s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as
profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss.

All other notes to the consolidated financial statements include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise

Heating business disposal

In July 2019 a subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, including Elenia La&mp6 Oy and associated
company Oriveden Lampo Oy, to SL Capital Infrastructure | SCSP, DIF Infrastructure V Codperatief U.A. and LPPI Infrastructure
Investments LP. Elenia Lampé Oy has been reported as discontinued operations in income statement and related notes full year
in 2018 and until the date of disposal in 2019.

Financial information relating to the discontinued operations for the period to the date of disposal is set out below.

The results of district heating business for the year are as follows:

EUR 1,000 1 January 2019 1 January 2018
to 21 July to 31 December

2019 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers 41,830 77,005
Income from investment in an associate - 143
Expenses (33,992) (63,657)
Sales profit of Heat business less costs to sell 335,911 -
Operating profit 343,749 13,491
Finance income and costs 4 6
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 343,753 13,497

Tax benefit / (expense):

Tax benefit 408 845
Profit for the period/ year from discontinued operations 344,161 14,342
Profit for the period/year from discontinued operations without 8,250 14,342
sales profit

The profit for the year from discontinued operations for 2018 includes EUR 18,290 thousand group contribution from Elenia
Lamp6 Oy to Elenia Oy, which is in IFRS reported through equit)S(i5



Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5.4 Discontinued operations (continued)
Assets and liabilities of district heating business are as follows:

EUR 1,000

Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates
Deferred tax assets
Inventories

Current receivables

Assets total

Liabilities

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Liabilities related to contracts with customers
Other non-current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Liabilities total

Net assets directly associated with disposal group

Gain on disposal
Consideration received less costs to sell

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of
Cash inflow arising from disposal

The net cash flows incurred by district heating business are as follows:

EUR 1,000

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net cash flow

56

Note

3.1
32

5.5
6.1.2
6.2
214

234
6.1.2
3.3

232
213
42

232

1 January 2019
to 21 July 2019

29,647
(8.517)

(13,358)
7,772

2019

101,019
97,783
63,418

756
226
3,016
14,109

280,327

1,205
25,536
221
1,663
489
913
4,791

34,718
245,609

335,911

581,519

(7.772)

573,748

1 January 2018
to 31 December
2018

23,844
(10,304)
(13,540)




Elenia Holdings S.ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5.5 Investment in an associate

Investment in an associate (Accounting policy)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control is similar to those necessary to determine control
over subsidiaries.

Investments in associated companies are valued at acquisition cost on the date of the acquisition. Interests in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method. The Group's share of its associated companies’ post-acquisition profits
or losses after tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The carrying value of the investment is adjusted by post-acquisition changes in equity. Investments in associated companies
include the goodwill recorded for the acquisition. Goodwill is not amortised or individually tested for impairment. If the Group’s
share of losses in an associated company exceeds the carmrying value of the investment, the investment is recorded on the
balance sheet as having zero value and losses in excess of the carrying value are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements unless the Group has undertaken obligations on behalf of the associated company.

After application of the equity method, the Group assesses whether there is a need to record impairment for an associated
company. If there are indications that the value of the investment has declined, the Group calculates the loss on impairment
and records the difference in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the associated company. The Group's share of the results of associated companies for the financial period is presented as a
separate item before operating profit.

The accounting policies of associated companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

EUR 1,000 31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Acquisition cost at 1 January 774 727
Business combination - -
Share of profit for the year 143
Decrease _
Dividends received (48) (96)
Disposal (726) -}
Acquisition cost at 31 December - 774

In July 2019, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, including Elenia L&mp6 Oy and associated company

Oriveden L&mp& Oy, to SL Capital Infrastructure 1l SCSP, DIF Infrastructure V Cooperatief U.A. and LPPI Infrastructure Investments LP.

After that disposal, the Group does not have any investment in an associate com pany.
Information concerning for the associates for 2018 is as follows:

31 December 2018

EUR 1,000 Segment Holding, Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit/loss
%

Oriveden Alueldmpt Oy Heat 50 3,820 3,178 1,884 283

Oriveden Alueldampd Oy is located in Orivesi municipality, Finland. Oriveden Alueldmpd Oy's main products are district heating production and
distribution.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

6 Other notes

6.1 Taxes
6.1.1 Current income tax
Current income tax (Accounting policy)

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current income taxes (Accounting judgements)

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. Given the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to the tax estimation.

The Group companies establish provisions based on reasonable estimates. In the case that the final taxes are different than the amounts initially
recognized, these differences will affect income tax and provisions for deferred tax during the year when the determination of tax differences took
place. Management estimates that the estimated tax shown in the consolidated financial statement represent a reasonable estimate of the Group's
tax position,

The maijor components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss, continuing operations

EUR 1,000

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous periods

Deferred taxes

Income tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Consolidated statement of OCI, continuing operations

EUR 1,000

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans
Deferred tax charged to OCI

Income tax rate

Tax on profit before tax deviates from the nominal tax calculated according to the tax rate as follows:

EUR 1,000

Profit before tax, continuing operations

Theoretical income tax using the nominal tax rate of 20.0% (2018: 20.0%)
- tax-free income items

- expenses that are non-deductible in taxation

- adjustment of taxes based on previous periods

- unrecognized deferred tax assets from taxation losses

- change in deferred tax rate

Income tax in the income statement, continuing operations

Effective tax rate was 18%

1 January 2019 - 31

1 January 2018 - 31

December 2019 December 2018
re-presented

(5,610) (6.012)

(4) (3)

3,042 717

(2,572) (5,298)

1 January 2019 - 31
December 2019

1 January 2018 - 31
December 2018
re-presented

(9)

1 January 2019 - 31

)]

1 January 2018 - 31

December 2019 December 2018
re-presented

14,465 -2,241

(2,893) 448

(73) (3,697)

416 (2,033)

(4) (3)

(18) (13)

(2,572) (5,298)

In July 2018, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lamp6 Oy which has been reported as a discontinued
operation in income statements. The notes of the consolidated statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of continuous operations. See

Note 5.4 for more information about the discontinued operation.
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6.1.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax (Accounting policy)

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

+ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except;

+ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit or loss is recognised outside the statement of profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Deferred tax (Accounting judgements and estimates)

The Group recognizes deferred tax assets by taking into account their recoverability, based on the existence of deferred tax liabilities with
similar maturities for netting and the possibility of generation of sufficient future taxable profits. The management assessed the deferred tax
booked in the financial statements to be recoverable.

The estimations and the actual flows of taxes paid or received could differ from the estimates made by the Group as a result of unforeseen
future legal changes in estimates.

The Group has deferred tax assets and liabilities which are expected to be realised through the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
certain periods of time in the future. The calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities involves making certain assumptions and estimates
regarding the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as recorded in the
financial statements and their tax basis.

6.1.2 Deferred tax

Change in deferred tax assets and liabilities in 2019

Deferred tax assets As at Recognised in Discontinued Recognised in As at
31 Dec 2018 the statement operations other 31 Dec 2019
of profit or loss (Note 5.4) comprehensive
income
EUR 1,000
Elimination of internal margin in non-current assets - 67 = - 67
Measurement of assets at fair value in acguisition - 340 - - 340

Deferred tax asset for the confirmed losses . - % 2
Defined benefit plans 222 (4) (226) 5 (3)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers 1,945 1,430 17 - 3,392
Finance leases 747 (122) - - 625
Total 2,914 1,711 (209) 5 4,421
Offset by deferred tax liabilities - 0
Deferred tax assets 2,914 4,421
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Deferred tax liabilities As at Recognised in Discontinued Recognised in As at
31 Dec 2018 the statement operations other 31 Dec 2019
of profit or loss (Note 5.4) comprehensive
income
EUR 1,000
Interest-bearing liabilities 1,675 (371) - 1,304
Depreciation differences 53,244 3,423 (9,639) - 47,028
Measurement of assets at fair value in acquisition 88,005 (4,382) (16,236) - 67,387
Total 142,924 (1,330) (25,875) - 115,720
Offset by deferred tax assets - 0
Deferred tax liabilities 142,924 115,720
Change in deferred tax assets and liabilities in 2018
Deferred tax assets As at Recognised in Discontinued Recognised in A at
31 Dec 2017 the statement operations other 31 Dec 2018
of profit or loss (Note 5.4)  comprehensive
income
EUR 1,000
Elimination of internal margin in non-current assets = = = = £
Measurement of assets at fair value in acquisition - - - - -
Deferred tax asset for the confirmed losses 12,672 (12,672) - - 0
Defined benefit plans 227 6 - (11) 222
Liabilities related to contracts with customers = 1,945 - - 1,945
Finance leases 831 (84) - - 747
Total 13,730 (10,804) - (11) 2,915
Offset by deferred tax liabilities (12,672) - - -
Deferred tax assets 1,059 2,915
Deferred tax liabilities As at Recognised in Discontinued Recognised in Aat
31 Dec 2017 the statement operations other 31 Dec 2018
of profit or loss (Note 5.4} comprehensive
income
EUR 1,000
Interest-bearing liabilities 1,812 (137) - - 1,675
Depreciation differences 60,295 (7,051) - - 53,244
Measurement of assets at fair value in acquisition 93,193 (5,187) - - 88,005
Elimination of internal margin in non-current assets - - - - 2
Total 155,300 (12,375) - 142,925
Offset by deferred tax assets (12,672) - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 142,628 142,925

The Group has aggregate tax losses of EUR 1,687,374,923 (EUR 1,687,345,904 for the Company and EUR nil for Elenia Qy) for offset
against future taxable profits of the Group in which the losses arose. The losses carried forward are available indefinitely for the Company.
In 2017 the Group has recorded a deferred tax asset on the confirmed losses for 2012-2013 for Elenia Oy which have been fully utilizied in
the financial year 2018. While the remaining losses on which the deferred tax not recorded are related to the Company that have a history
of losses, deferred tax assets have not been recognised as these losses may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group.

In July 2018, the subsidiary of the Group, Elenia Oy, sold its district heating business, Elenia Lampo Oy which has been reported as a
discontinued operation in income statements. The notes of the consolidated statement of profit or loss are provided the breakdowns of
continuous operations. See Note 5.4 for more information about the discontinued operation.
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Elenia Holdings S.ar.l.
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6.3 Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit pension plans

The following table shows how the discount rate affects to projected benefit obligation, related service cost and interest cost.

2019

Assumption Change in Fair value Net Service costs Net

EUR 1,000 assumptio of Plan Liability for the next interest
n assets reporting year

Discount rate 0.4 - 0.7% 3,092 473 - 2

Discount rate 0.9 - 1.1% +0,50 % 2,923 425 - 4

Discount rate -0.1 - 0.1 % -0,50 % 3,278 528 - -1

2018 re-presented

Assumption Change in Fair value Net Service costs Net

EUR 1,000 assumptio of Plan Liability for the next interest
n assets reporting year

Discount rate 1.5 - 1.7% 4,445 1,105 3 T

Discount rate 2.0 - 2.2% +0.50% 4,190 986 3 8

Discount rate 1.0 - 1.2% -0.50% 4,727 1,242 3 5

As the defined benefit plans are managed by an external insurance company, it is not possible to present a division of the fair

values of the plan assets.

Expected contributions for 2020 are estimated to be EUR 30 thousand.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 13-21 years.

The following table shows the maturity profile of the future benefit payments

EUR 1,000
Under 1 year
1-10 years
10-20 years
20-30 years
Over 30 years
Total

Actuarial assumptions used in calculations
Discount rate

Estimate of salary increases
Inflation

2019 2018

225 264

1,611 2,231
1,072 2,139

621 1,503

318 949

3,847 7,086
2019 2018
04-0.7% 1.5-1.7%
21-23% 26-2.7%
1.1-1.3% 1.6-1.7%
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6.4 Related Party Disclosures
Shareholders

The Company's shareholders are Lakeside Network Investment Holding BV, a limited liability company incorporated under the law
of the Netherlands, with statutory seat in Amsterdam and Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.a r.l. organised under the laws of Luxembourg
as a société a responsabilité limitée with the statutory seat in Luxembourg.

At 1 January 2018, the Company’s ultimate parents, were 3i Networks Finland L.P. a limited partnership company duly incorporated
under the law of the United Kingdom (16 Palace Street, SW1E 5JD London, Great Britain), GS International Infrastructure Partners
I, L.P. and GS Global Infrastructure Partners II, L.P.two limited partnership companies duly incorporated under the law of the state
of Delaware (USA) (1209, Orange Street, Wilmington) and limarien Mutual Pension Insurance Company a mutual insurance
company duly incorporated under the law of Finland.

On 28 February 2018, the Group was acquired by a consortium of infrastructure investors: Société Fonciére Européenne B.V.
(SFE) and Allianz Infrastructure Luxembourg | S.a r.l. (AIL) (together 45%), Elton Ventures S.a r.l. (45%) and Valtion Eldkerahasto
(VER) (10%). SFE and AlL are fully indirect subsidiaries of Allianz SE, and therefore members of the Allianz Group. Elton Ventures
S.ar.l. is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Macquarie Super Core Infrastructure Fund SCSp managed by Macquarie
Infrastructure and Real Assets (Europe), who is part of Macquarie Asset Management Group. VER is the State Pension Fund of
Finland.

Subsidiaries and associates

The Company owns all shares in Elenia Oy. Elenia Oy owns all of the shares in Elenia Palvelut Oy and Elenia Finance Qyi.

Elenia Finance Oyj owns all of the shares in Elenia Finance (SPPS) S.a r.l., Luxembourg. Elenia Lamp5 Oy had an associate,
Oriveden Alueldmpé Oy where it held 50% of its shares. Elenia Ldmpé Oy and the associated company Oriveden Lamp6 Oy were
sold in July 2019.

Senior Management

The Group is managed by its Board of Managers. The Group's top management includes the Board of Managers and the Board of
Directors of Elenia Oy. The Group has not had any business transactions with persons included in its top management and the
Group has not granted loans to these persons. Refer to Note 2.3.3 for the compensation to the CEOs of the Group.

Management team

Management teams of Elenia Oy are included within the scope of the long-term incentive plan. Description of the long-term
incentive plan has been disclosed in Note 2.3.3.

Business transactions

All transactions with related parties take place in an arm’s length manner. Group companies have intercompany transactions which
are mainly related to administrative services. Besides Elenia Palvelut Oy provides customer service and related services to the
Elenia Group, and Elenia Finance Oyj provides treasury services to the Group companies. These are eliminated upon
consolidation.

Other long-term loans were repaid during the financial year amounted to EUR 0.0 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: EUR
252.2 million). Loans were due to the company's ultimate owners through intermediary holding entities. Starting from 1 March 2018
these loans were treated as shareholder loans in taxation. The following table includes the specification of other long-term loans
and related interests.

EUR 1,000 Loan amount 31 Interest expenses Loan amount Interest expenses

Dec 2018 1 Mar - 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 1Jan - 31 Dec 2019
Tampere Finance B.V. 113,551 14,622 - 7,085
Kimi Finance B.V. 113,428 14,622 - 7,087
Pispala Finance B.V. 25,206 3,249 - 1,575
Total 252,185 32,493 - 15,747

As at 31 December 2019, other long-term receivables with an aggregate carrying value of EUR 159.3 million (2018: EUR 0.0 million)
are due from the Group's ultimate owners through intermediary holding entities. The following table includes the specification of other
long-term receivables and related accrued interests.

EUR 1,000 Loan amount 31 Interest expenses Loan amount Interest expenses

Dec 2018 1 Mar - 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 1 Jan - 31 Dec 2019
Elenia Group Oy - - 158,678 678
Lakeside Network Investments Holding B.V. 478 8 698 10
Total 478 8 159,376 688
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6.5 Events after the reporting period

Elenia changed its organization on 1 January 2020. The most significant change in the
organizational structure was the transfer of Support Functions from Elenia Oy to Elenia Palvelut
Oy.

In January 2020, Elenia Oy sold 100% of the shares in Elenia Palvelut Oy to Elenia Investment
S.ar.l. As a result, Elenia Palvelut Oy became the parent company of the operative group. See
Note 1.4 for more information on reorganizations.

On 6 February 2020, Elenia issued a EUR 500 million bond to institutional investors with a
maturity of seven years and a fixed coupon of 0.375%.

The post year-end Covid-19 virus outbreak is impacting the global economy and the market
environment. At this stage, the final impact of the Covid-19 virus outbreak on the operations of
the Group is hard to predict. However, based on initial assessment , the Board of Managers
doesn't currently foresee that Covid-19 virus outbreak would have material impact on the Group’s
business. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements do not include any impacts related
to this event. The Board of Managers is actively monitoring the consequences of this event with
the local management in Finland. However, this post year-end market conditions and related
uncertainties could result in outcomes that require an adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities affected in future periods.
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